
Memorandum  
Planning & Development Services Division 

 
 

To:  Planning and Public Works Committee 

From: Jessica Henry, Project Planner  

Date:  May 5, 2016   

RE:  Spirit Energy, LLC (Starbucks): A Site Development Plan, 
Landscape Plan, Lighting Plan, Architectural Elevations and an 

Architect's Statement of Design for a 0.31 acre tract of land zoned 
“PC” Planned Commercial District located in the southwest 
quadrant of the intersection of Olive Boulevard and Woods Mill 

Road. 
 

 
Summary 
CEDC, Inc. on behalf of First & Main, LLC has submitted a request for a Site 

Development Plan, Landscape Plan, Lighting Plan, Architectural Elevations and 
an Architect’s Statement of Design for the construction of a new single story, 622 

square foot Starbucks located on a 0.31 acre tract in the southwest quadrant of 
the intersection of Olive Boulevard and Woods Mill Road. The proposed 
restaurant will offer drive-thru and walk-up service only; no indoor seating for 

customers is proposed. A 200 square foot patio is located adjacent to the walk-
up order window on the western end of the building. 
 

The project was reviewed by the Architectural Review Board (ARB) on December 
10th, 2015. A motion to forward the submittal to the Planning Commission with 

a recommendation for approval with recommendations passed by a vote of 4-0.  

At the March 14, 2016 Planning Commission meeting, a motion to approve the 
site development plan passed by a vote of 6-3 with the conditions of adding a 

pedestrian crosswalk on the north side of the building and adding a bike rack to 
the site. Both of these conditions have been incorporated into the Site 
Development Plan submitted for the consideration of the Planning and Public 

Works Committee. Prior to the vote, significant discussion regarding the site 
accesses, pedestrian and vehicular circulation, and the adequacy of the provided 

drive-thru stacking spaces occurred.  
  

A copy of the Site Development Plan packet is attached. Additionally, the 
applicant has requested that the attached letter and traffic memo completed by 

the Lochmueller Group be included in the packet. As the memo was not received 
until Friday afternoon, this information has not been reviewed by Staff. 

 

III. B. 



Planning &Public Works Committee         Spirit Energy (Starbucks) 

May 5th, 2016                                                                 Site Development Plan 

 

 

 
 
Respectfully submitted, 

 
 

 
Jessica Henry, AICP 
Project Planner 

 
 
cc:       Aimee Nassif, Planning and Development Services Director 

 

 

Attachments: Applicant’s Letter and Lochmueller Group Traffic Memo 
Site Development Plan Packet 
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MEMORANDUM 

To: Mr. Richard Robinson 

From: Dustin Riechmann, PE, PTOE 

Lauren Delaney, PE, PTOE 

Date: April 27, 2016 

Subject: Gap Analysis at Proposed Site Driveway 

Starbucks Drive-Thru Facility 

515-0147-0TE 

 

In response to questions raised by City officials, Lochmueller Group has completed a more thorough 

study of the ability of Starbucks patrons to exit the site onto Olive Boulevard.  Specifically, a gap study 

was completed to quantify conditions during a typical weekday morning.   

 

The site is located in the southwest quadrant of Olive Boulevard and Woods Mill Road. The data for the 

gap analysis was collected at the location of the proposed right-in/right-out only site driveway on Olive 

Boulevard (approximately 170 feet west of Woods Mill) in order to determine if adequate gaps would 

be available for motorists making a right turn out of the site onto Olive Boulevard during the morning 

peak period. 

 

The data was collected on Tuesday April 12, 2016 using video detection.  The data was analyzed using 

Miovision’s software, which applies the methodology outlined in the Highway Capacity Manual to 

calculate the number of adequate gaps for motorists making a right turn onto the major street (Olive 

Boulevard).   

 

The number of available gaps of sufficient length to accommodate side-street right turns during the 

morning peak hour of traffic on Olive Boulevard is summarized in Table 1.  It should be noted that 

these numbers represent the gaps in eastbound flow when Olive Boulevard is empty long enough for at 

least one right-turn maneuver to be made from a complete stop without impeding the flow of 

oncoming traffic in any way.   

 

Table 1: Available Gaps for Right Turns onto Olive during the Morning Peak Hour 

Time Period Total Gaps 

7:15-7:30 a.m. 36 

7:30-7:45 a.m. 24 

7:45-8:00 a.m. 16 

8:00-8:15 a.m. 23 

Total 99 
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Gap Study Summary 

April 27, 2016 
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As shown, there are approximately 99 full gaps available to serve right-turning vehicles from the 

proposed driveway during the heaviest morning peak hour.  As noted in the previous Traffic 

Assessment, only approximately 60 motorists would be expected to exit the site during the peak hour, 

and only a portion of those would use the driveway on Olive Boulevard (some motorists will exit onto 

Woods Mill Road). 

Moreover, even during the busiest 15-minute period, there is in excess of one gap available per minute, 

which would adequately serve motorists exiting the site onto Olive Boulevard. 

Additionally, there are substantially more gaps available during the rest of the morning, outside of the 

busiest peak hour.  Table 2 summarizes the gaps available in each hour between 6:00 a.m. and 10:00 

a.m.  Outside of the peak hour, there are typically 4 to 6 gaps available per minute. 

Table 2: Available Gaps for Right Turns onto Olive throughout the Morning 

Time Period Total Gaps 

6:00-7:00 a.m. 362 

7:00-8:00 a.m. 131 

8:00-9:00 a.m. 247 

9:00-10:00 a.m. 374 

Total 1,114 

Based on the preceding discussion, it is our professional opinion that sufficient gaps are available 

during the a.m. peak hour to accommodate right-turning vehicles exiting Starbucks onto Olive 

Boulevard.  Moreover, given that this represents the heaviest peak hour on eastbound Olive Boulevard, 

ample gaps should be available throughout the remainder of the day and the week. 

We trust that you will find this gap analysis useful in evaluating traffic characteristics associated with 

the proposed drive-thru-only Starbucks.  Please do not hesitate to contact our office at 314-621-3395 

should you have any questions regarding this information. 
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